
From: Pam Davies/  
To: Roger.Halliday ,  
Date: 13/06/2014 09:34 
Subject: Re: Recorded crime stats - Scotland 
 
 
Roger, thanks for sharing this with me.   
 
I Have no suggestions for change - I think your note strikes the right tone, sets out the facts and events, 
and is very clear.  For what it is worth, I am left in no doubt that the decisions you made were for 
statistical reasons.   
 
Let me know if there is anything else I can do to help. 
 
Pam 
 
 
Pam Davies | Head of National Statistician's Office | Statistics House, Tredegar Park, Newport. NP10 
8XG 

 
 
 
 

 
 
From: Roger.Halliday  
To: Pam Davies/ ,  
Date: 11/06/2014 14:39 
Subject: Recorded crime stats - Scotland 
 
 
 
Pam  
  
Recorded crime stats - Scotland 
  
You may remember last week we talked briefing about a conversation I had with Ed 
Humpherson about the recorded crime assessment. Ed mentioned that some of the 
assessment committee suggesting my motivations around delaying the publication were 
political rather than statistical.  While I challenged this at our meeting, I wanted to go 
back to him in writing.  You kindly agreed to look at the draft. This is below. If you were 
able to come back by end tomorrow with views, that would be tremendously useful. 
  
Thanks in advance for your help with this. 
  
Roger  
--------------------------------------  
Roger Halliday  
Chief Statistician & Head of Performance, Scottish Government,   

  
Ed 
  



I wanted to come back to you, reflecting upon our conversation on recorded crime last 
week.  I was upset about the feedback from some assessment committee members 
who suggested my decision was politically motivated. As I said last week, I completely 
refute this and wanted to lay out my thought process and how/when I involved others in 
this decision.  I wanted there to be no doubt about what happened here. 
  
The first I heard about the risks here was in an annual review I hold with each senior 
statistician each January. At the meeting with , he mentioned as his first risk 
the potential for the move to a single police force to cause difficulties. He followed up in 
writing about risks… “Ensuring the new data collection process within the police service 
do not interrupt the timeline for published recorded crime – this is the main high value 
risk at present and subject to a lot of attention” [note from  to me on 04 Feb].  I 
asked him to keep me in touch with this. 
  
My initial understanding of the focus of your interest in recorded crime stats in Scotland 
was to seek assurance that the issues seen in England/Wales were not replicated here. 
Given the risks  had previously mentioned, he kept me in touch with progress and 
the risk persisted. As the assessment exercise has been significantly more involved 
since April, this has diverted some attention away from the delivery of the 2013-14 data 
and its publication.  
  
At the meeting we had in late April, you and  expressed concerns about code 
compliance, particularly around the way the figures were being communicated to users.  
My responsibility as a HoP is to ensure statistics I’m responsible for are of high quality 
and communicated in a way that they can be interpreted accurately by users.  Whoever 
expresses concerns about the nature of statistics we produce, I have a role in 
investigating and ensuring there is a plan for delivering statistics in a high quality way.   
  
As such, I followed up our conversation with  and asked what his team still needed 
to achieve to deliver a quality product and how long that would take. I was clear to  
that I wanted him and his team to be conservative in estimating the delay because I 
didn’t want the date moved twice (as this would undermine our credibility around 
statistics planning.  We also explored possibilities of boosting the resource within 

 team and I gave a member of my team with the most relevant experience to 
help. While at this stage we still needed to do more to understand your concerns,  using 
our assessment of what was needed it was clear that we couldn’t deliver the statistics to 
their original (June) timetable.  Moreover, we had an additional problem in that the pre-
referendum period is mid-August to mid-September. Our guidance to all statisticians 
here has been to pre-announce the intention to publish in this period a long time in 
advance and not to switch statistics into or out of this period wherever possible. As I 
couldn’t be assured that the justice team could deliver a quality assured dataset and 
publication ahead of mid-August, I had to decide on an October publication date. 
  
I alerted you to my thinking and decision to delay soon after (7th May e-mail).  I noted 
your support for statistical reasons underpinning this change and concern about how 
this may be perceived. My difficulty was that I couldn’t see a way of guaranteeing the 



statistics would be produced to the necessary level of quality and explained to users 
ahead of mid-August.  
  
Justice statistics colleagues here informed senior managers and Ministers about the 
change of date a few days ahead of our public announcement: submission on 19th May, 
public announcement on 22nd. Other relevant bodies were informed about the change 
of date the day ahead of the announcement. 
  
I hope this is clear about how I handled this situation and that I was acting for statistical 
reasons alone, in accordance with my role as a head of profession.   
  
Roger 
  

********************************************************************** 

This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is 
intended solely for the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised use, 
disclosure, storage, copying or distribution of any part of this e-mail is 
not permitted. If you are not the intended recipient please destroy the 
email, remove any copies from your system and inform the sender immediately 
by return. 
 
Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or recorded in 
order to secure the effective operation of the system and for other lawful 
purposes. The views or opinions contained within this e-mail may not 
necessarily reflect those of the Scottish Government. 

  

  

Tha am post-d seo (agus faidhle neo ceanglan còmhla ris) dhan neach neo 
luchd-ainmichte a-mhàin. Chan eil e ceadaichte a chleachdadh ann an dòigh sam 
bith, a’ toirt a-steach còraichean, foillseachadh neo sgaoileadh, gun chead. 
Ma ’s e is gun d’fhuair sibh seo le gun fhiosd’, bu choir cur às dhan phost-d 
agus lethbhreac sam bith air an t-siostam agaibh, leig fios chun neach a 
sgaoil am post-d gun dàil.  

  

Dh’fhaodadh gum bi teachdaireachd sam bith bho Riaghaltas na h-Alba air a 
chlàradh neo air a sgrùdadh airson dearbhadh gu bheil an siostam ag obair gu 
h-èifeachdach neo airson adhbhar laghail eile. Dh’fhaodadh nach eil beachdan 
anns a’ phost-d seo co-ionann ri beachdan Riaghaltas na h-Alba.  

********************************************************************** 
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